
 
 
 

Delegated Decisions by Cabinet Member for the Fire 
Service & Corporate Plan 
 

Monday, 8 September 2014 at 12.00 pm 
County Hall, New Road, Oxford 
 
 

Items for Decision 
 
The items for decision under individual Cabinet Members’ delegated powers are listed 
overleaf, with indicative timings, and the related reports are attached.  Decisions taken 
will become effective at the end of the working day on 16 September 2014 unless called 
in by that date for review by the appropriate Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Copies of the reports are circulated (by e-mail) to all members of the County Council. 
 

These proceedings are open to the public 
 

 
 
 
 

Note:  Date of next meeting: 6 October 2014 
 
 
 
 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of 
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer 
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 
 
 

 
Peter G. Clark  
County Solicitor August 2014 
 
 
Contact Officer: 

 
 
Deborah Miller 
Tel: (01865) 815384; Email: deborah.miller@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



Page 2  
 

 

 

Items for Decision 
 

1. Declarations of Interest  

2. Questions from County Councillors  

 Any county councillor may, by giving notice to the Proper Officer by 9 am two 
working days before the meeting, ask a question on any matter in respect of the 
Cabinet Member’s delegated powers. 
 
The number of questions which may be asked by any councillor at any one 
meeting is limited to two (or one question with notice and a supplementary 
question at the meeting) and the time for questions will be limited to 30 minutes in 
total. As with questions at Council, any questions which remain unanswered at the 
end of this item will receive a written response. 
 
Questions submitted prior to the agenda being despatched are shown below and 
will be the subject of a response from the appropriate Cabinet Member or such 
other councillor or officer as is determined by the Cabinet Member, and shall not 
be the subject of further debate at this meeting. Questions received after the 
despatch of the agenda, but before the deadline, will be shown on the Schedule of 
Addenda circulated at the meeting, together with any written response which is 
available at that time. 

 

3. Petitions and Public Address  

4. Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP) Oxfordshire Fire And 
Rescue Service - Draft Action Plan 2015-16 (Pages 1 - 4) 

 Forward Plan Ref: 2014/056 
Contact: Matt Carlile, Business & Improvement Manager Tel: (01865) 855211 
 
Report by Chief Fire Officer (CMDFSCP4). 
 
This report proposes a number of projects to be included within the Fire Authority’s 
Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP) draft action plan for the fiscal year 
2015-16.  The proposals summarise areas where the Service’s Senior Leadership 
Team believe service improvements and/or greater value to the wider OCC 
corporate priorities may be achieved. To meet the requirements of the CRMP 
process, each proposal will be supported by evidence, validating both their inclusion 
and their contribution to improved community outcomes and community/firefighter 
safety.  Similarly, each proposal recognises the prevailing economic constraints. 
 
There is little doubt that Oxfordshire Fire and Rescue Service has transformed itself 
from an organisation that just deals with fire response to one that also covers 
preventative and wider rescue work and, as a consequence, we have succeeded in 
reducing incidents dramatically over the years. The proposed projects for the CRMP 
Action Plan 2015-16 reflect the changing nature of risk and demand within the 
county and recognises the wider role that OFRS will need to continue to undertake 
in the future. 
 
The proposals for the 2015 - 16 action plan are as follows: 



Page 3  
 

 

 
Project 1: Implement Emergency Medical Support Services in collaboration with 
South Central Ambulance Service (SCAS). 
Responsible Manager: Area Manager - Operations and Resilience 
 
Project 2: Review adverse weather resilience arrangements with the Emergency 
Planning team and partners. 
Responsible Manager: Area Manager - Strategic Risk and Planning 
 
Project 3: Trial emergency cover review recommendations in the Carterton area. 
Responsible Manager: Area Manager - Operations and Resilience 
 
Project 4: Identify opportunities to work with partners to improve health, safety & 
wellbeing in local communities. 
Responsible Manager: Area Manager - Community Risk 
 
These proposals, if approved by the Cabinet Member for Fire Service and Corporate 
Plan, will be adopted in the draft version of the CRMP Action Plan 2015-16 and will 
be subject to wide ranging consultation & scrutiny. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Fire Service & Corporate Plan is RECOMMENDED to: 
 
(a) approve the proposed projects to be included for further consultation & 

scrutiny in the draft CRMP Action Plan 2015-16; 
(b) approve for the Chief Fire Officer to report back to Cabinet following 

consultation. 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Division(s): N/A 

 

 
CABINET MEMBER FOR FIRE SERVICE AND CORPORATE PLAN  

8th SEPTEMBER 2014 
 

COMMUNITY RISK MANAGEMENT PLAN (CRMP) OXFORDSHIRE 
FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE - DRAFT ACTION PLAN 2015-16  

 
Report by the Deputy Chief Fire Officer – Fire & Rescue Service 

 

Introduction 
 
1. This report proposes a number of projects to be included within the Fire 

Authority’s Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP) draft action plan for 
the fiscal year 2015-16.  The proposals summarise areas where the Service’s 
Senior Leadership Team believe service improvements and /or greater value 
to the wider OCC corporate priorities may be achieved. To meet the 
requirements of the CRMP process, each proposal will be supported by 
evidence, validating both their inclusion and their contribution to improved 
community outcomes and community/firefighter safety.  Similarly, each 
proposal recognises the prevailing economic constraints. 

 
2. These proposals, if approved by the Cabinet Member for Fire Service & 

Corporate Plan, will be adopted in the draft version of the CRMP Action Plan 
2015-16 and will be subject to wide ranging consultation & scrutiny.   
 

3. The Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004 received Royal Assent on 22 July 
2004.  Part 3, Chapter 21 of this legislation requires the Secretary of State to 
prepare a Fire and Rescue National Framework to which Fire Authorities must 
have regard when discharging their functions. 

 
4. The Secretary of State published the latest Fire and Rescue National 

Framework in July 2012. The new Framework has an open-ended duration 
which gives fire and rescue authorities greater certainty with the high level, 
strategic nature of the Framework meaning that it should remain unchanged 
for the medium to long term. The Framework recognises the proficiency and 
experience of fire and rescue authorities and gives them the freedom and 
flexibility to deliver services to their communities without prescription from 
Whitehall. Its intention is to move accountability away from central 
government and place power in the hands of local communities. Key priorities 
for fire and rescue authorities in the new framework include: 

 

 identifying and assessing the full range of foreseeable fire and rescue 
related risks their area faces 

 making provision for prevention and protection activities and 
responding to incidents appropriately 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



 working in partnership with their communities and a wide range of 
partners locally and nationally to deliver their service; and 

 being accountable to communities for the service they provide.  

 The Framework enables fire and rescue authorities to efficiently deliver 
their services against a backdrop of change and the need to cut the 
national deficit. 

 
In addition the Framework clearly defines national resilience setting out clear 
roles and responsibilities as well as setting out arrangements for fire and 
rescue authorities to collectively engage with government on national 
resilience issues through a new Fire and Rescue Strategic Resilience Board. 
The Board will enable a collaborative approach to national resilience that is 
based on and drawn from local capability, expertise, knowledge and 
leadership. 
 

5. The Fire and Rescue National Framework requires each Fire and Rescue 
Authority to produce a publicly available Integrated Risk Management Plan  
(IRMP), (in the case of Oxfordshire, CRMP) covering at least a three-year 
time span which: 

 

 Demonstrates how prevention, protection and response activities will 
best be used to mitigate the impact of risk on communities, through 
authorities working either individually or collectively, in a cost effective 
way; 

 

 Sets out its management strategy and risk based programme for 
enforcing the provisions of the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 
2005 in accordance with the principles of better regulation set out in the 
Statutory Code of Compliance for Regulators, and the Enforcement 
Concordat; 

 

 Is easily accessible and publicly available; 
 

 reflects effective consultation throughout its development and at all 
review stages with the community, its workforce and representative 
bodies, and partners; 

 

 Is reviewed and revised as often as it is necessary to ensure that fire 
and rescue authorities are able to deliver the requirements set out in 
this Framework; 

 

 Reflects up to date risk analyses and the evaluation of service delivery 
outcomes. 

 

Page 2



6. In June 2014 the Department for Communities and Local Government issued 
a Fire and Rescue Bulletin (No. 46) outlining that the only requirements in 
relation to integrated risk management planning were those set out in the 
National Framework.  
 

7. The Department has no plans to develop or publish further guidance in 
relation to the integrated risk management planning process. The 
Department’s expectation is that the leadership of any further work to identify 
and/or share good practice on developing or delivering integrated risk 
management plans will be taken forward by the fire sector, either individually 
or collectively.  
 

8. Oxfordshire Fire and Rescue Authority published its strategic CRMP in April 
2013 providing the strategic direction up to 2018.  This document is subjected 
to annual review and will be updated and amended as required.   

 
9. The projects that have been proposed for the action plan 2015-16 will be 

subject to consultation for 12 weeks starting on the 10th October 2014.  
During this period, Oxfordshire Fire Authority will consult with elected 
members, neighbouring Fire and Rescue Services, partner organisations such 
as the Highways Agency and the Environment Agency, the Fire Brigades 
Union, all Oxfordshire Fire and Rescue staff and members of the public. 

 
10. Senior Management from Oxfordshire Fire and Rescue Service will respond 

to the comments made during the consultation period and the responses will 
be made available to Cabinet in the final report in 2015 and published on the 
internet for public access. 
 

11. There is little doubt that Oxfordshire Fire and Rescue Service has transformed 
itself from an organisation that just deals with fire response to one that also 
covers preventative and wider rescue work and, as a consequence, we have 
succeeded in reducing incidents dramatically over the years. The proposed 
projects for the CRMP Action Plan 2015-16 reflect the changing nature of risk 
and demand within the county and recognises the wider role that OFRS will 
need to continue to undertake in the future. 

 
12. The following items summarise the projects for inclusion in the CRMP Action 

Plan for the fiscal year 2015-16: 
 
Project 1: Implement Emergency Medical Support Services in collaboration 
with South Central Ambulance Service (SCAS). 
Responsible Manager: Area Manager - Operations and Resilience 

 
Project 2: Review adverse weather resilience arrangements with emergency 
planning team and partners. 
Responsible Manager: Area Manager - Strategic Risk and Planning 

 
Project 3: Trial emergency cover review recommendations in the Carterton 
area. 
Responsible Manager: Area Manager - Operations and Resilience 

Page 3



 
Project 4: Identify opportunities to work with partners to improve health, safety 
& wellbeing in local communities. 
Responsible Manager: Area Manager - Community Risk 

 
These proposals, if approved by the Cabinet Member for Fire Service and 
Corporate Plan, will be adopted in the draft version of the CRMP Action Plan 
2015-16 and will be subject to wide ranging consultation & scrutiny. 

 

Financial and Staff Implications 
 
13. Each project will be budgeted and will fully recognise the prevailing economic 

constraints, delivering efficiencies or allowing existing/additional services to 
be delivered more effectively. 

 

Equalities Implications 
 
14. A Service and Community Impact Assessment has been undertaken with 

regards to the proposed projects. This does not identify any issues with 
regards to equality. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
15. The Cabinet Member is RECOMMENDED to: 
 

(a) approve the proposed projects to be included for further 
consultation & scrutiny in the draft CRMP Action Plan 2015-16; 

(b) approve for the Chief Fire Officer to report back to Cabinet 
following consultation. 

 
 
DAVID ETHERIDGE 
Chief Fire Officer 
 
Background papers:  National Framework document for the Fire and Rescue Service 
Oxfordshire Fire Authority Integrated Risk Management Plan 2013-18 
 
Contact Officer: Nathan Travis 01865 855206 
 
August 2014   
 
 

Page 4


	Agenda
	4 Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP) Oxfordshire Fire And Rescue Service - Draft Action Plan 2015-16

